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Directors

Peter�Donlon�(Chairperson)
Janelle�Parry�(Deputy�Chairperson)
Mary�Rush�
Matthew�Stewart
Bruce�Marshall
Rachel�Strevens
Georgina�Dougall
Simon�Meadows�(Appointed:�27�January�2021;�Resigned:�15�July�2021)

Principal�Activities

Business�Objectives�

Review�of�Operations

Year�ended Year�ended
30�June�2021 30�June�2020

$ $
13,496,964���� 975,813���������

Year�ended Year�ended
30�June�2021 30�June�2020

$ $
2,199,120������ (1,698,143)�����

The operating result from discontinued operations for both financial years was consistent with board expectations following
it's�decision�to�close�the�facility�in�the�previous�financial�year.

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Report
Your�directors�present�their�report�of�the�Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited��for�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.

Directors�have�been�in�office�since�the�start�of�the�financial�year�to�the�date�of�this�report�unless�otherwise�stated.

The principal activities of the company during the course of the financial year were in providing health and welfare services
to�the�communities�within�the�Hume,�Macedon�Ranges�and�surrounding�local�government�areas.

The�names�of�each�person�who�has�been�a�director�during�the�year�and�to�the�date�of�this�report�are:

The company's short term objectives are to provide high quality and sustainable health and community services to the local
community. The company's long term objectives are to build the social fabric of the community through programs that help
people�support�themselves�and�each�other.

The surplus of the company from continuing operations for the financial year ended 30 June 2021 after provision for
income�tax�was:

Following the closure of the company's Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in March 2020, the surplus of the
company�from�discontinued�operations�for�the�financial�year�ended�30�June�2021�was:

On 1 January 2021, the company merged with Cobaw Community Health Services Limited. As part of the merger, the
company acquired Cobaw Community Health Services Limited's assets and assumed its liabilities, which were transferred to
the company at their carrying amount for nil consideration. This gave rise to a significant gain on bargain purchase of
$11,315,488 which is recognised in the surplus after income tax. The merger was also attributable to material increases in
the�company's�revenue,�expenditure,�assets�and�liabilities.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Report
Review�of�Operations�(continued)

The total surplus attributable to members from continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2021
was�$15,696,084�(2020:�$722,330�deficit).

The company measures its own performance through the use of quantitative and qualitative objectives. The achievement
of objectives are used by the directors to assess the financial and service provision performance of the company and
whether�the�company’s�shortͲterm�and�longͲterm�objectives�are�being�achieved.����

Significant�Changes�in�the�State�of�Affairs

During the previous financial year, a global pandemic caused by the COVIDͲ19 Coronavirus (COVIDͲ19) was declared. To
contain the spread of COVIDͲ19 and prioritise the health and safety of our community, the company was required to
comply with various restrictions announced by the Commonwealth and State Governments, which in turn, has continued to
impact�the�way�in�which�the�company�operates.

Since the pandemic the company has introduced a range of measures, including greater utilisation of telehealth services,
facilitating�the�performance�of�COVIDͲ19�testing�and�implementing�work�from�home�arrangements.

Whilst such measures have impacted the company's ability to deliver services and meet targets under its funding
agreements, the company provides essential services and has continued to provide services to clients and its community
where�possible�throughout�the�pandemic�within�the�rules�set�by�the�Commonwealth�and�State�Government.

On 1 January 2021, the company merged with Cobaw Community Health Services Limited. Sunbury Community Health
Centre Limited has remained as the entity that has continued on, and has subsequently changed its business name to
Sunbury and Cobaw Community Health. The merger has enabled the company to expand opportunities for health and
community�services�across�Sunbury�and�the�Macedon�Ranges.�

Performance�Measurement

New�and�Amended�Accounting�Standards�Adopted�by�the�Company

There�were�no�new�or�amended�Accounting�Standards�adopted�by�the�company�during�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.

Due to the spread of the novel coronavirus (COVIDͲ19) and the introduction of social isolation measures in Victoria
throughout the reporting period in response to the pandemic, the company was unable to meet a number of performance
obligations under its funding agreements. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the company received some indications
from its funding bodies that it would be supported throughout the pandemic and that there would be no obligation to
return�funds�to�each�relevant�funding�body�where�performance�obligations�had�not�been�satisfied.

The company recognised contract modifications from key funding bodies including the Department of Health (State), the
Department of Health (Commonwealth) and Dental Health Services Victoria (DHSV), waiving any unfulfilled performance
obligations for relevant programs for the 2020/21 financial year due to the ongoing challenges and disruptions presented
by COVIDͲ19. The contract modifications were either provided in writing, provided verbally or implied by customary
business practices. This resulted in the derecognition of contract liabilities and recognition of income for an amount of
approximately $2.2 million (2020: $867k), which would have otherwise been recognised as a contract liability at 30 June
2021 within the statement of financial position until subsequent years when underlying performance obligations were
fulfilled.

Refer to Significant Changes in the State of Affairs for further information regarding the impact of COVIDͲ19, discontinued
operations�and�the�merger.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Report

Environmental�Issues

Directors'�Benefits

Indemnification�and�Insurance�of�Directors�and�Officers

The closure of the facility continued to be disclosed as a discontinued operation in accordance with AASB 5 NonͲcurrent�
Assets�Held�for�Sale�and�Discontinued�Operations.

In February 2020, the company announced it's decision to close the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in Timins
Street,�Sunbury,�from�13�March�2020.�The�decision�to�close�was�made�after�much�consideration�of�all�possible�alternatives.

The gain on disposal resulted in the company recording a surplus from discontinued operations of $2,199,120 for the year
ended�30�June�2021�(2020:�$1,698,143�deficit),�with�further�information�disclosed�at�Note�4.

Significant�Changes�in�the�State�of�Affairs�(continued)

Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited acquired Cobaw Community Health Services Limited's assets and assumed their
liabilities on 1 January 2021, which were transferred to the company at their carrying amounts for nil consideration. Refer
to Note 5 for further information. The merger has contributed towards material increases in the company's revenue,
expenditure,�assets�and�liabilities.

Following the closure, in May 2020, the company entered into a Transfer of Places Agreement to sell its 33 approved
residential bed licences. Settlement occurred in November 2020, resulting in a material gain on disposal of such intangible
assets.

In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the company that occurred
during�the�financial�year�under�review�not�otherwise�disclosed�in�this�report�or�the�financial�statements.

The�company�has�not�provided�any�insurance�for�an�auditor�of�the�company�or�a�related�body�corporate.

The company has indemnified all directors and officers in respect of liabilities to other persons (other than the company or
related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors or officers of the company except where the liability
arises�out�of�conduct�involving�the�lack�of�good�faith.

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which affected or may significantly affect
the�operations�of�the�company,�the�results�of�those�operations�or�the�state�of�affairs�of�the�company,�in�future�years.

The�company�is�not�subject�to�any�significant�environmental�regulation.

The State Government issued lockdown restrictions for Metropolitan Melbourne and regional Victoria on 5 August 2021.
Lockdown restrictions were subsequently eased in regional Victoria on 9 August 2021 before subsequently being eased for
Metropolitan Melbourne on 21 October 2021. The State of Emergency in Victoria was extended on 26 August 2021 and
remained�in�place�until�21�October�2021.

The COVIDͲ19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and conditions in the
future may be materially different from those estimated by the company at the reporting date. Management recognises
that it is difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after the reporting
date�on�the�company,�its�operations,�its�future�results�and�financial�position.

Events�Subsequent�to�the�End�of�the�Reporting�Period

No director has received or become entitled to receive, during or since the financial year, a benefit because of a contract
made by the company, controlled entity or related body corporate with a director, a firm which a director is a member or
an�entity�in�which�a�director�has�a�substantial�financial�interest�except�as�disclosed�in�Note�21�to�the�financial�statements.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Report
Proceedings�on�Behalf�of�the�Entity

Information�on�Directors

Peter�Donlon
Qualifications Ͳ Bachelor�of�Science,�Associate�Diploma�of�Computing,�MAICD
Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Janelle�Parry
Qualifications Ͳ CPA,��Bachelor�of�Business�(Accountancy)
Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Mary�Rush�
Qualifications Ͳ Bachelor�of�Business�(Management)
Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Matthew�Stewart
Qualifications Ͳ

Special�Responsibilities Ͳ Board�Member,�Member�of�Nominations�Committee

Bruce�Marshall
Qualifications Ͳ

Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Rachel�Strevens
Qualifications Ͳ
Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Georgina�Dougall
Qualifications Ͳ

Special�Responsibilities Ͳ Board�Member,�Nominations�Committee

Simon�Meadows
Qualifications Ͳ
Special�Responsibilities Ͳ

Chairperson, Member of Clinical Governance & Risk SubͲcommittee,
Member�of�Nominations�Committee,�Member�of�ICT�&�Data�Subcommittee

Board Member, Member of Nominations Committee, Member of Clinical
Governance�&�Risk�SubͲcommittee

Board Member, Member of Nominations Committee, Member of
Investment Strategy SubͲcommittee, Member of Clinical Governance & Risk
SubͲcommittee,�Member�of�ICT�&�Data�Subcommittee

Board Member, Nominations Committee, Chairperson Investment Strategy
SubͲcommittee,�Member�of�ICT�&�Data�Subcommittee

Australian Certified Economic Developer, Bachelor of Business (Marketing),
Diploma�of�Management,�Graduate�Diploma�of�Education�(Secondary)

GAICD,�CPA,�Bachelor�of�Arts,�Master�of�Commerce

Bachelor of Health Science, Post Graduate Diploma of Nursing Management,
Registered�Nurse�Division�1

Deputy Chairperson, Member of Nominations Committee, Member of
Investment Strategy SubͲcommittee, Member of Clinical Governance & Risk
SubͲcommittee�(Chairperson)

GAICD, Certificate IV Assessment and Workplace Training, Diploma of
Business Management, Bachelor of Arts (Recreation), Graduate Diploma of
Education,�Post�Graduate�Diploma�of�Education�(Health�Education)

Board Member, Member of Nominations Committee, Member of ICT & Data
Committee

Bbus,�BA,�Graduate�of�Australian�Institute�of�Company�Directors

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the entity or intervene in any proceedings to
which the entity is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the entity for all or any part of those
proceedings.�The�entity�was�not�a�party�to�any�such�proceedings�during�the�year.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Report
Meeting�of�Directors

Eligible�to�
attend Attended

Eligible�to�
attend Attended Membership

Peter�Donlon�(Chairperson) 10 10 6 6 Nom,�CGR,�ICT
Janelle�Parry�(Deputy�Chairperson) 10 10 6 6 Nom,�CGR,�ISSC
Mary�Rush 10 10 4 3 Nom,�CGR,�ISSC
Matthew�Stewart 10 9 Ͳ Ͳ Nom
Bruce�Marshall� 10 10 8 7

Rachel�Strevens� 10 7 4 4 Nom,�ISSC,�ICT
Georgina�Dougall� 10 8 Ͳ Ͳ Nom
Simon�Meadows 5 3 1 Ͳ Nom,�ICT

Company�Secretary

Members'�Guarantee

Auditors'�Independence�Declaration

The�directors'�report�is�signed�in�accordance�with�a�resolution�of�the�board�of�directors.

Peter�Donlon Janelle�Parry
Chairperson Deputy�Chairperson

Dated:�28�October�2021

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2021 has been received and can be found on page
6�of�the�financial�report.

The�position�of�Company�Secretary�was�held�by�Megan�Batsakis�for�the�financial�year.�

The entity is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. The entity is registered
with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission as well as the Australian Charities and NotͲforͲprofits
Commission. If the company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of
$10 each towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the entity. At 30 June 2021 the number of members was 51
(2020:�39).

Board�meetings

During the financial year, 10 meetings of directors (board meetings) were held. The company also has three
subcommittees, including the Board Nominations Committee (Nom), the Investment Strategy Subcommittee (ISSC), the
Clinical Governance & Risk Subcommittee (CGR) and the ICT & Data Subcommittee (ICT). Attendances by each director
were�as�follows:

Nom,�CGR,�
ISSC,�ICT

Subcommittee�Meeting
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Auditor-General’s Independence Declaration 
 

To the Board of Directors, Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited 

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General, an 
independent officer of parliament, is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his 
powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. 

Under the Audit Act 1994, the Auditor-General is the auditor of each public body and for the purposes of 
conducting an audit has access to all documents and property, and may report to parliament matters 
which the Auditor-General considers appropriate. 

Independence Declaration 
As auditor for Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited for the year ended 30 June 2021, I declare that, 
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

• no contraventions of auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit. 

• no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 

 
 

 

MELBOURNE 
1 November 2021 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 

 



2021 2020
Note $ $

Continuing�operations

Revenue�from�contracts�with�customers 2 17,428,128������� 13,037,486�������

Other�sources�of�income 2 4,438,251��������� 2,869,693���������

Gain�on�bargain�purchase�from�merger 5 11,315,488������� Ͳ���������������������

Employee�benefits�expense 3 (16,182,475) (12,765,723)

Depreciation�and�amortisation�expense 3 (591,810) (323,956)

Finance�expenses 3 (5,486) (35,976)

Utility�expenses (160,466) (147,355)

Motor�vehicle�expenses (49,771) (61,424)

Audit,�accreditation,�legal�and�consultancy�fees (252,125) (152,759)

Staff�training�and�development�expenses (215,229) (147,812)

Client�support�services�expenses (746,930) (396,698)

General�program�supplies (626,808) (167,625)

External�dental�providers (218,126) (310,035)

Repairs�and�maintenance (128,509) (162,914)

Impairment�of�property,�plant�and�equipment 12 (167,255) Ͳ���������������������

Other�expenditure (339,913) (259,089)

Surplus�before�income�tax�expense 13,496,964����� � 975,813���������� �

Income�tax�expense 1(c) Ͳ��������������������� Ͳ���������������������

Surplus�after�income�tax�expense 13,496,964����� � 975,813���������� �

Discontinued�operations

Surplus/(Deficit)�after�tax�from�discontinued�operations 4 2,199,120��������� (1,698,143)

Surplus/(Deficit)�attributable�to�members�of�the�entity 15,696,084����� � (722,330)

For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

Statement�of�Profit�or�Loss�and�Other�
Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�

Comprehensive�Income�

The�accompanying�notes�form�part�of�these�financial�statements
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2021 2020
Note $ $

For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

Statement�of�Profit�or�Loss�and�Other�
Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�

Comprehensive�Income�

Other�comprehensive�income

Items�that�will�not�be�reclassified�to�profit�or�loss:

Gain/(Loss)�on�revaluation�of�land�from�continuing�operations 12 377,165������������ (97,470)

Net�loss�on�revaluation�of�land�and�buildings�from�discontinued�operations 12 Ͳ��������������������� (592,804)

Total�comprehensive�income/(loss)�attributable�to�members�of�the�entity 16,073,249����� � (1,412,604)

Total�comprehensive�income/(loss)�for�the�year�arises�from:

Continuing�operations 13,874,129������� 878,343������������

Discontinued�operations 4 2,199,120��������� (2,290,947)

16,073,249����� � (1,412,604)

The�accompanying�notes�form�part�of�these�financial�statements
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2021 2020
Note $ $

Current�assets

Cash�and�cash�equivalents 6 8,303,516��������� 2,837,755���������
Trade�and�other�receivables 7 875,494������������ 919,843������������
Inventories 8 29,699�������������� 27,261��������������
Other�assets 9 64,587�������������� 81,239��������������
Assets�classified�as�held�for�sale 10 Ͳ��������������������� 44,908��������������

Total�current�assets 9,273,296������� � 3,911,006������� �

NonͲcurrent�assets

Investments 11 4,852,599��������� 1,424,615���������
Property,�plant�and�equipment 12 16,756,388������� 6,663,921���������
RightͲofͲuse�assets 13 982,413������������ 69,937��������������

Total�nonͲcurrent�assets 22,591,400����� � 8,158,473������� �
Total�assets 31,864,696����� � 12,069,479����� �

Current�liabilities

Trade�and�other�payables 14 4,315,330��������� 2,663,186���������
Provisions 15 2,672,110��������� 1,788,205���������
Lease�liabilities 16 874,393������������ 27,163��������������

Total�current�liabilities 7,861,833������� � 4,478,554������� �

NonͲcurrent�liabilities

Provisions 15 866,064������������ 516,685������������
Lease�liabilities 16 33,057�������������� 43,747��������������

Total�nonͲcurrent�liabilities 899,121���������� � 560,432���������� �
Total�liabilities 8,760,954������� � 5,038,986������� �
Net�assets 23,103,742����� � 7,030,493������� �

Equity

Retained�earnings 21,709,047������� 6,012,963���������
Asset�revaluation�reserve 23 1,214,695��������� 837,530������������
Asset�replacement�reserve 23 180,000������������ 180,000������������

Total�equity 23,103,742����� � 7,030,493������� �

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Statement�of�Financial�Position�
As�at�30�June�2021

The�accompanying�notes�form�part�of�these�financial�statements
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$ $ $ $

Balance�at�1�July�2019 6,735,293��������� 1,527,804��������� 180,000������������ 8,443,097���������

Deficit�for�the�year (722,330) Ͳ��������������������� Ͳ��������������������� (722,330)

Other�comprehensive�income�for�the�year:

�Ͳ�Loss�on�revaluation�of�property,�plant�and�equipment Ͳ��������������������� (690,274) Ͳ��������������������� (690,274)

Balance�at�30�June�2020 6,012,963������� � 837,530���������� � 180,000���������� � 7,030,493������� �

Surplus�for�the�year 15,696,084������� Ͳ��������������������� Ͳ��������������������� 15,696,084�������

Other�comprehensive�income�for�the�year:

�Ͳ�Gain�on�revaluation�of�property,�plant�and�equipment Ͳ��������������������� 377,165������������ Ͳ��������������������� 377,165������������

Balance�at�30�June�2021 21,709,047����� � 1,214,695������� � 180,000���������� � 23,103,742����� �

Total�comprehensive�income�for�the�year�attributable�
to�members�of�the�entity

15,696,084����� � 377,165���������� � Ͳ������������������� � 16,073,249����� �

(722,330) (1,412,604)Ͳ������������������� �(690,274)
Total�comprehensive�income�for�the�year�attributable�
to�members�of�the�entity

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Statement�of�Changes�in�Equity�
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

Retained�
Earnings

Asset�
Revaluation�
Reserve

Asset�
Replacement�

Reserve Total�Equity

The�accompanying�notes�form�part�of�these�financial�statements
|�10



2021 2020
Note $ $

Cash�flows�from�operating�activities

Continuing�operations

Receipts�from�clients�and�government�grants 23,107,253����� 16,604,983�����
Receipts�from�donations,�reimbursements�and�rentals 442,220����������� 323,162�����������
Payments�to�suppliers�and�employees (20,714,178) (15,781,802)
LowͲvalue�lease�payments (19,344) (13,830)
Interest�received 42,454������������� 27,733�������������
Interest�paid (5,486) (35,976)
Dividends�received 76,522������������� 43,058�������������

Discontinued�operations

Receipts�from�clients�and�government�grants 219,912����������� 1,831,284��������
Payments�to�suppliers�and�employees (219,912) (2,404,467)
Interest�received Ͳ������������������� 10,401�������������
Interest�paid Ͳ������������������� (9,295)

Net�cash�provided�by�operating�activities 17 2,929,441������ � 595,251��������� �

Cash�flows�from�investing�activities

Continuing�operations

Proceeds�from�sale�of�property,�plant�and�equipment 30,704������������� 29,284�������������
Payments�for�property,�plant�and�equipment (871,463) (161,138)
Proceeds�from�sale�of�investments 132,733����������� 536,373�����������
Payments�for�purchase�of�investments (3,201,627) (400,703)
Cash�and�cash�equivalents�acquired�from�merger 4,316,181�������� Ͳ�������������������

Discontinued�operations
Proceeds�from�sale�of�intangible�assets 2,199,120�������� Ͳ�������������������

Net�cash�provided�by�investing�activities 2,605,648������ � 3,816������������� �

Cash�flows�from�financing�activities

Continuing�operations

Payment�of�principal�elements�of�lease�liabilities (69,328) (13,014)

Discontinued�operations

Receipt�of�refundable�accommodation�bonds Ͳ������������������� 1,437,374��������
Payment�of�refundable�accommodation�bonds Ͳ������������������� (2,979,516)

Net�cash�used�in�financing�activities (69,328) (1,555,156)
Net�increase�/�(decrease)�in�cash�held 5,465,761�������� (956,089)
Cash�and�cash�equivalents�at�the�beginning�of�the�financial�year 2,837,755�������� 3,793,844��������
Cash�and�cash�equivalents�at�the�end�of�the�financial�year 6 8,303,516������ � 2,837,755������ �

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Statement�of�Cash�Flows
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

The�accompanying�notes�form�part�of�these�financial�statements
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Basis�of�Preparation

Impact�of�global�COVIDͲ19�pandemic

Ͳ greater�utilisation�of�telehealth�services
Ͳ facilitating�the�performance�of�COVIDͲ19�testing
Ͳ implementing�work�from�home�arrangements.

Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited (the company) applies Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements�as�set�out�in�AASB�1053:�Application�of�Tiers�of�Australian�Accounting�Standards.

The�financial�statements�are�prepared�on�a�going�concern�basis.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements
containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated
otherwise.

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

During the previous financial year, a global pandemic caused by the COVIDͲ19 Coronavirus (COVIDͲ19) was declared. To
contain the spread of COVIDͲ19 and prioritise the health and safety of our community, the company was required to comply
with various restrictions announced by the Commonwealth and State Governments, which in turn, has continued to impact
the�way�in�which�the�company�operates.

Since�the�pandemic�the�company�has�introduced�a�range�of�measures,�including:

Whilst such measures have impacted the company's ability to deliver services and meet targets under its funding agreements,
the company provides essential services and has continued to provide services to clients and its community where possible
throughout�the�pandemic�within�the�rules�set�by�the�Commonwealth�and�State�Government.

The financial statements cover Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited as an individual entity, incorporated and domiciled
in�Australia.�Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�is�a�company�limited�by�guarantee.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies

Refer�to�Note�1(a)�Revenue�and�Note�20�Events�after�the�Reporting�Period�for�further�information.

The�financial�statements�were�authorised�for�issue�on�28�October�2021�by�the�directors�of�the�company.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) to meet the
requirements of the Australian Charities and NotͲforͲprofits Commission Act 2012. The company is a notͲforͲprofit entity for
financial�reporting�purposes�under�Australian�Accounting�Standards.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected nonͲcurrent assets, financial assets
and�financial�liabilities.�The�amounts�presented�in�the�financial�statements�have�been�rounded�to�the�nearest�dollar.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(a) Revenue�

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ

Ͳ

Ͳ

Customer Significant�program�or�activity

Department�of�Health�(Victoria) Community�Health

Department�of�Health�(Victoria) Allied�Health

Department�of�Families,�Fairness�and�Housing Individual,�Child�and�Family�Support

Department�of�Families,�Fairness�and�Housing Perpetrators�Responses�Family�Violence

Department�of�Health�(Commonwealth) Commonwealth�Home�Support�Programme

Dental�Health�Services�Victoria State�Dental�Health�and�National�Partnership�Program

National�Disability�Insurance�Agency National�Disability�Insurance�Scheme

Where�the�contract�is�not�enforceable�or�does�not�have�sufficiently�specific�performance�obligations,�the�company:

recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable Accounting Standards
(for�example�AASB�9,�AASB�16,�AASB�116�and�AASB�138)

to�recognises�revenue�as�it�satisfies�its�performance�obligations,�as�services�are�rendered.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the introduction of social isolation measures in Victoria in response to the COVIDͲ19
pandemic�has�impacted�the�company's�ability�to�satisfy�its�performance�obligations�contained�within�funding�agreements.�

In contracts with customers, the 'customer' is typically a funding body, who is the party that promises funding in exchange for
the company's goods or services. The company's funding bodies often direct that goods or services are to be provided to thirdͲ
party beneficiaries, including individuals or the community at large on behalf of the funding body. In such instances, the
customer remains the funding body that has funded the program or activity, however the delivery of goods or services to
third�party�beneficiaries�is�a�characteristic�of�the�promised�good�or�service�being�transferred�to�the�funding�body.

The�nature�and�timing�of�revenue�related�to�each�of�the�above�significant�programs�or�activities�are�disclosed�below.

If a contract liability is recognised as a related amount above, the company recognises income in profit or loss when or as it
satisfies its obligations under the contract, unless a contract modification is entered into between all parties. A contract
modification�may�be�obtained�in�writing,�by�oral�agreement�by�implied�by�customary�business�practices.

When the company receives revenue, it assesses whether the contract is enforceable and has sufficiently specific
performance�obligations�in�accordance�with�AASB�15.

recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or
contract�liability�arising�from�a�contract�with�a�customer)�and
recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and the
related�amount.

This policy applies to each of the company's revenue streams, with information detailed below relating to the company's most
significant revenue streams. The company's funding bodies include both Commonwealth and State Government funding
bodies.

When�both�these�conditions�are�satisfied,�the�company:

identifies�each�performance�obligation�relating�to�the�revenue
recognises�a�contract�liability�for�its�obligations�under�the�agreement
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(a) Revenue�(continued)

Community�Health�and�Small�Rural�Primary�Health

Allied�Health

Individual,�Child�and�Family�Support

Perpetrators�Responses�Family�Violence

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

This program includes the provision of general counselling, allied health and other services. The company's performance
obligation is to provide a set number of hours of service delivery each financial year. Revenue is recognised over time as and
when services are provided to the community on behalf of the customer. The company uses the output method to measure
its�progress�in�satisfying�its�performance�obligations.

Throughout the pandemic, the company has received indications that it would be supported throughout the pandemic and
there would be no obligation to return funds to each relevant funding body where performance obligations had not been
met.

This resulted in approximately $2.2 million being recognised as income for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: $867,000)
which would have otherwise been recognised as a contract liability in the statement of financial position until subsequent
years when underlying performance obligations were fulfilled. The impact of contract modifications obtained for the
company's�most�significant�revenue�streams,�where�applicable,�is�disclosed�below.

The company was unable to meet annual targets for the above due to COVIDͲ19. The company accounted for a contract
modification, which was provided in writing from the funding body, waiving all unsatisfied performance obligations, resulting
in the derecognition of approximately $237k (2020: $67k) in contract liabilities and recognition of income for the year ended
30�June�2021.

The company was unable to meet annual targets for the Home and Community Care Allied Health program due to COVIDͲ19.
The company accounted for a contract modification, which was based on the funding body's customary business practice of
waiving unsatisfied performance obligations for programs adversely impacted by COVIDͲ19, resulting in the derecognition of
approximately�$371k�(2020:�$181k)�in�contract�liabilities�and�recognition�of�income�for�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.�

The company was able to meet its annual targets for the Individual, Child and Family Support program for the year ended 30
June�2021.�Targets�were�also�satisfied�during�the�year�ended�30�June�2020.

This program includes the provision of allied health services, including clinical assessments, treatment, therapy or professional
advice. The company's performance obligation is to provide a set number of hours of service delivery each financial year.
Revenue is recognised over time as and when services are provided to the community on behalf of the customer. The
company�uses�the�output�method�to�measure�its�progress�in�satisfying�its�performance�obligations.

This program includes a comprehensive range of services for vulnerable children (from preͲbirth up to 17 years old) and their
families to promote children's safety, stability and healthy development. The company's performance obligation is to provide
a set number of hours of service delivery each financial year. Revenue is recognised over time as and when the services are
provided to the community on behalf of the customer. The company uses the output method to measure its progress in
satisfying�its�performance�obligations.

This program includes a range of services which aim to reduce violence and enhance the safety of victim survivors
experiencing or recovering from family violence. The company's performance obligation is to provide a set number of hours of
service delivery each financial year. Revenue is recognised over time as and when the services are provided to the community
on behalf of the customer. The company uses the output method to measure its progress in satisfying its performance
obligation.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(a) Revenue�(continued)

Commonwealth�Home�Support�Programme

State�Dental�Health�and�National�Partnership�Program

National�Disability�Insurance�Scheme

Capital�grants

When the company receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial carrying amount of the financial
asset received over any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions,
revenue�or�contract�liability�arising�from�a�contract�with�a�customer)�recognised�under�other�Australian�Accounting�Standards.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

The company was unable to meet annual targets for the Commonwealth Home Support Programme due to COVIDͲ19. The
company accounted for a contract modification, which was based on the funding body's customary business practice of
waiving unsatisfied performance obligations for programs adversely impacted by COVIDͲ19, resulting in the derecognition of
approximately $917k in contract liabilities and recognition of income for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: approximately
$418k).

The company was unable to meet annual targets for the State Dental Health and National Partnership Program due to COVIDͲ
19. The company accounted for a contract modification, which was based on the funding body's customary business practice
of waiving unsatisfied performance obligations for programs adversely impacted by COVIDͲ19, resulting in the derecognition
of�approximately�$592k�(2020:�$85k)�in�contract�liabilities�and�recognition�of�income�for�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.�

This program includes the provision of public dental health services to members of the community. The company's
performance obligation is to provide a set number of activity units each financial year. Revenue is recognised over time as and
when services are provided to the community on behalf of the customer. The company uses the output method to measure
its�progress�in�satisfying�its�performance�obligations.

This activity includes the provision of individualised support and services to people with a disability. The company's
performance obligation is to deliver services in accordance with each individual's plan approved by the National Disability
Insurance Agency (NDIA), which is developed based on the individuals needs and requirements. Revenue is recognised over
time as the individual simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company as it performs services in
accordance with each individual's approved plan. The company uses the output method to measure its progress in satisfying
its�performance�obligations.

This program including the provision of a range of services, including podiatry, occupational therapy, physiotherapy, social
work, dietitians and speech pathology. The company's performance obligation is to provide a set number of hours of service
delivery each financial year. Revenue is recognised over time as and when services are provided to the community on behalf
of�the�customer.�The�company�uses�the�output�method�to�measure�its�progress�in�satisfying�its�performance�obligations.

The company recognises income in profit or loss when or as the company satisfies its obligations under terms of the grant.
Unspent�capital�grants�are�recognised�within�trade�and�other�payables�in�accordance�with�AASB�1058.

The company was unable to meet annual targets for the Perpetrators Responses Family Violence program due to COVIDͲ19,
which�gave�rise�to�a�contract�liability�of�approximately�$201k�at�30�June�2021.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(a) Revenue�(continued)

Volunteer�services

Donations�and�bequests

Interest�income

Dividend�income

Government�stimulus�in�response�to�COVIDͲ19

(b) Expenditure

Employee�benefits�expense

In response to the economic impact of COVIDͲ19, in March 2020, the Commonwealth Government announced various
stimulus measures to ease the burden experienced by organisations as a result of isolation and social distancing measures. As
an eligible employer, the company receives a wage subsidy under the Commonwealth's JobKeeper stimulus measure in
arrears of paying wages to employees. The company recognises the subsidy as other income when it has reasonable
assurance that the subsidy will be paid to the company, which is at the time minimum wage payments have been paid to the
company's�employees.

The company recognises expenditure as it is incurred, which is reported in the financial year to which the expense relates.
Further information regarding each of the company's significant categories of expenditure which are not disclosed elsewhere
within�Note�1�to�the�financial�report�are�detailed�below.

Employee benefits expense includes salaries and wages paid to employees (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements
and termination payments) and onͲcosts (including superannuation guarantee contributions, leave loading and workers
compensation�premiums).

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

A notͲforͲprofit entity may, as an accounting policy choice, elect to recognise volunteer services, if the fair value of those
services can be measured reliably, whether or not the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. The
company receives volunteer services from members of the community. Whilst the provision of such volunteer services are
important to the achievement of the entities objectives, as an accounting policy choice, the company has elected not to
recognise such volunteer contributions as revenue and expenditure within profit or loss. This election has no impact on the
company's�deficit�or�net�assets.

Interest�income�is�recognised�using�the�effective�interest�method.

Donations and bequests are generally recognised upon receipt as they do not contain sufficiently specific and enforceable
performance�obligations.

The company recognises dividends in profit or loss only when the company's right to receive payment of the dividend is
established.

All�revenue�is�stated�net�of�the�amount�of�goods�and�services�tax.

|�16



Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(b) Expenditure�(continued)

Other�operating�expenses

Ͳ utility�expenses Ͳ����general�program�supplies
Ͳ motor�vehicle�expenses Ͳ����external�dental�provider�costs
Ͳ audit,�accreditation,�legal�and�consultancy�fees Ͳ����repairs�and�maintenance
Ͳ staff�training�and�development�expenses Ͳ����other�expenses
Ͳ client�support�services�expenses

(c) Income�Tax

(d) Cash�and�Cash�Equivalents

(e) Trade�and�Other�Receivables

(f) Property,�Plant�and�Equipment�

Property

Where an independent valuation has not been performed on land and buildings at balance date, the directors perform an
assessment to determine whether or not there has been a material change in fair value since the date of the last independent
valuation.�Refer�to�Note�1(q)�for�further�information.

Other operating expenses represent the day to day running costs incurred in normal operations of the company's activity and
include�costs�relating�to:

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shortͲterm highly liquid investments
with�original�maturities�of�three�months�or�less,�and�bank�overdrafts.�

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any provision for expected credit losses. Refer to Note 1(i) for further disclosures regarding the
measurement�of�the�provision�for�expected�credit�losses.

Trade and other receivables includes amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business.
All�receivables�are�classified�as�current�assets.�

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The company's property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are
held for the use in the supply of services, for rental to others and for administrative purposes which the company expects to
use�during�more�than�one�period.

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax
Assessment�Act�1997.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Revaluation decreases that offset previous increases of the same class of
asset�are�recognised�in�other�comprehensive�income�under�the�heading�of�revaluation�surplus.

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers, which
are�conducted�at�least�every�three�years,�less�subsequent�depreciation�for�buildings.
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(f) Property,�Plant�and�Equipment�(continued)

Plant�and�Equipment

Class�of�Fixed�Asset Depreciation�Rate

Buildings 2.5Ͳ5%
Improvements 10Ͳ20%
Plant�and�equipment 10Ͳ30%
Motor�vehicles 15Ͳ20%
Furniture�&�fittings 10Ͳ20%

(g) Leases

The�company�as�lessee

Class�of�lease Lease�term

Concessionary/peppercorn�lease�of�land�and�buildings 20�years
Motor�vehicles 3�years

Note�1.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that
asset�are�transferred�to�retained�earnings.

Depreciation

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are
present�(refer�to�Note�1(j)�for�details�of�impairment).

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at the fair value of
the�asset�at�the�date�it�is�acquired.

Freehold land and buildings that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at the fair
value�of�the�asset�at�the�date�it�is�acquired.

The�assets’�residual�values�and�useful�lives�are�reviewed,�and�adjusted�if�appropriate,�at�the�end�of�each�reporting�period.

All other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Revaluation increases are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
reverses a net revaluation decrease of the same class of assets previously recognised in profit or loss. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated�to�the�revalued�amount�of�the�asset.

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including rightͲofͲuse assets, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a
straight line basis over the asset's useful life to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful
lives of the improvements. The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are as follows, which are
consistent�with�the�previous�reporting�period:

Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

The company's lease portfolio includes motor vehicles and concessionary/peppercorn leases of land and buildings. The lease
terms�for�each�type�of�lease�arrangement�are:
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Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(g) Leases�(continued)

Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Initially, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at lease commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the�company�uses�the�incremental�borrowing�rate.

Lease�payments�included�in�the�measurement�of�the�lease�liability,�where�applicable,�are�as�follows:

At inception of a contract, the company assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If there is a lease present, a rightͲofͲuse
asset and a corresponding lease liability is recognised by the company where the company is a lessee. However, all contracts
that are classified as shortͲterm leases (ie a lease with a remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of lowͲvalue
assets (ie fair value less than $10,000) are recognised as an operating expense on a straightͲline basis over the term of the
lease.�

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

RightͲofͲuse assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset, whichever is the shortest. Where
a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the rightͲofͲuse asset reflects that the company anticipates
to�exercise�a�purchase�option,�the�specific�asset�is�depreciated�over�the�useful�life�of�the�underlying�asset.�

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement�date

the�exercise�price�of�purchase�options,�if�the�lessee�is�reasonably�certain�to�exercise�the�options

fixed�lease�payments�less�any�lease�incentives

The�company�is�not�exposed�to�any�potential�future�increases�in�variable�lease�payments.

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

The company leases a premises at 12Ͳ28 Macedon Street, Sunbury, from the Department of Health, formerly referred to as
the Department of Health and Human Services, which represents the Victorian Government, which meets the definition of a
peppercorn/concessionary lease. The lease commenced in June 2012 for a term of 20 years, expiring in June 2032. Under the
terms of the lease agreement, the company is required to pay $104 (exͲGST) per annum and is only permitted to use the
premises�to�deliver�services�under�its�service�agreements�with�the�Department�of�Health.

The rightͲofͲuse assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability as mentioned above, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, as well as any initial direct costs. The subsequent measurement of the
rightͲofͲuse�assets�is�at�cost�less�accumulated�depreciation�and�impairment�losses.

the�amount�expected�to�be�payable�by�the�lessee�under�residual�value�guarantees

For leases that have significantly belowͲmarket terms and conditions principally to enable the company to further its
objectives (commonly known as peppercorn/concessionary leases), the company has adopted the temporary relief under
AASB 2018Ͳ8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Ͳ RightͲofͲUse Assets of NotͲforͲProfit Entities and measures
the�rightͲofͲuse�assets�at�cost�on�initial�recognition.

In addition, the company leases a premises at 142 Main Street, Romsey, from Macedon Ranges Shire Council, which meets
the definition of a peppercorn/concessionary lease. The lease commenced in February 2016 for a term of 21 years, expiring in
February 2037. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the company is required to pay $1 (exͲGST) per annum and is only
permitted�to�use�the�premises�to�deliver�community�services.

lease�payments�under�extension�options,�if�the�lessee�is�reasonably�certain�to�exercise�the�options

|�19



Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(g) Leases�(continued)

The�company�as�lessor

(h) Intangible�Assets

Each of the company's lease arrangements are for use in the production of supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. No lease agreements contain any material obligations that require the company to restore leased premises to their
original�condition�at�the�end�of�each�respective�lease.

The�company�has�no�lease�arrangements�under�a�subͲlease�arrangement�where�it�is�a�lessor.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the intangible asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset) is included in profit or
loss.

Intangible�assets�acquired�separately�are�measured�on�initial�recognition�at�cost.

After initial recognition at cost, the company may elect to subsequently measure the intangible asset under the revaluation
model�as�an�accounting�policy�choice,�on�the�condition�that�there�is�an�active�market�for�those�assets.�

For these reasons, the price paid for one asset may not provide sufficient evidence of the fair value of another. The cost
model�was�therefore�applied�by�the�company�in�the�subsequent�measurement�of�intangible�assets.

The company also holds a licence agreement with Central Highlands Rural Health to use land at 1 Caroline Chisholm Drive,
Kyneton. Prior to entering into the licence, the company entered into a contract of sale to purchase the land, however
settlement is yet to occur. The licence provides the company with the ability to use the land up until settlement date for
consideration�of�$1�per�week�until�settlement�date.

The board have considered the terms and conditions of the licence agreement and believe it gives rise to a concessionary
lease. However the licence also references the contract of sale, which specifies an agreed purchase price that the company is
reasonably certain to exercise. Accordingly, the company has recognised a rightͲofͲuse asset of $830,000 and lease liability of
$754,545, being the agreed purchase price less a deposit already paid to the seller at balance date. The rightͲofͲuse asset
excludes�the�$1�per�week�consideration�payable�as�it�is�deemed�trivial.

The company's intangible assets were limited to 33 residential approved bed licences that were acquired for nil consideration.
Whilst residential approved bed licences are bought and sold, contracts are negotiated between individual buyers and sellers,
and�transactions�are�relatively�infrequent.

The company also leases a premises at 47Ͳ49 Forest Street, Woodend, from Macedon Ranges Shire Council, which meets the
definition of a peppercorn/concessionary lease. The lease commenced in April 2007 for an initial term of 10 years, before
being renewed until April 2027. The renewed lease agreements contains a further term of ten years commencing in April
2027 which the company is reasonably certain to exercise. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the company is required
to�pay�1%�of�the�market�rent�per�annum.

With the exception of the lease agreement that contains a purchase option as disclosed above, all other rightͲofͲuse assets
and lease liabilities relating to the company's peppercorn/concessionary lease arrangements are considered trivial to the
financial�statements�and�have�therefore�not�been�recognised�on�the�statement�of�financial�position.

During the year ended 30 June 2021 the company sold its 33 residential approved bed licences. This resulted in the
recognition�of�a�$2,199,120�gain�on�disposal�which�has�been�disclosed�within�discontinued�operations.
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(i) Financial�Instruments

(i) Financial�liabilities�

(ii) Financial�assets�

Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ
Ͳ

Ͳ
Ͳ

The�company�does�not�measure�any�financial�assets�at�fair�value�through�other�comprehensive�income.

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where
the instrument is classified "at fair value through profit or loss", in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss
immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances,
valuation�techniques�are�adopted.

Initial�recognition�and�measurement

amortised�cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the
instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie
trade�date�accounting�is�adopted).

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The company does not
utilise�derivative�financial�instruments�and�has�no�financial�liabilities�designated�at�fair�value�through�profit�or�loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
expense�in�profit�or�loss�over�the�relevant�period.�

The initial designation of the financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit and loss is a oneͲtime option on
initial classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised. The company has elected to subsequently
measure�it's�investments�at�fair�value�through�profit�or�loss�to�simplify�the�accounting�for�such�financial�assets.

A�financial�asset�is�subsequently�measured�at�amortised�cost�if�it�meets�the�following�conditions:

the�contractual�cash�flow�characteristics�of�the�financial�asset�and
the�business�model�for�managing�the�financial�assets.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost are subsequently measured at fair value
through�profit�and�loss.

Financial�assets�are�subsequently�measured�at:

on�the�basis�of�the�two�primary�criteria:

Classification�and�subsequent�measurement

A�financial�liability�cannot�be�reclassified.�

fair�value�through�profit�and�loss

the�financial�asset�is�managed�solely�to�collect�contractual�cash�flows�and
the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on�the�principle�amount�outstanding�on�specified�dates.
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(i) Financial�Instruments�(continued)

(i) Derecognition�of�financial�liabilities

(ii) Derecognition�of�financial�assets

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

Recognition�of�expected�credit�losses�in�financial�statements

The�provision�for�expected�credit�losses�is�not�considered�material�to�the�financial�statements.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

The�carrying�amount�of�financial�assets�measured�at�amortised�cost�includes�the�loss�allowance�relating�to�that�asset.

The company uses the simplified approach to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9, which is applicable to trade
receivables.

Derecognition

the�right�to�receive�cash�flows�from�the�asset�has�expired�or�been�transferred

A financial asset is derecognised when the company's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred in
such�a�way�that�all�the�risks�and�rewards�of�ownership�are�substantially�transferred.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum�of�the�consideration�received�and�receivable�is�recognised�in�profit�or�loss.

the�entity�no�longer�controls�the�asset�(ie�no�practical�ability�to�make�unilateral�decision�to�sell�the�asset�to�a�third�party).
all�risk�and�rewards�of�ownership�of�the�asset�have�been�substantially�transferred�and

Impairment

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including�any�nonͲcash�assets�transferred�or�liabilities�assumed,�is�recognised�in�profit�or�loss.

Expected credit losses are the probabilityͲweighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial instrument. A
credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all
discounted�at�the�original�effective�interest�rate�of�the�financial�instrument.

All�the�following�criteria�need�to�be�satisfied�for�derecognition�of�a�financial�asset:

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost.
A�loss�allowance�is�not�recognised�for�financial�assets�measured�at�fair�value�through�profit�or�loss.

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (ie when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to
the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial
liability.

At each reporting date, the company recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the
statement�of�profit�or�loss�and�other�comprehensive�income.

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but instead requires the
recognition�of�lifetime�expected�credit�loss�at�all�times.

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into consideration various data
to�get�to�an�expected�credit�loss,�(ie�diversity�of�its�customer�base,�appropriate�groupings�of�its�historical�loss�experience�etc).�
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(j) Impairment�of�Assets

(k) Employee�Benefits

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will include consideration of
external�sources�of�information�and�internal�sources�of�information.�

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

The company classifies employees' long service leave entitlements as long term employee benefits where employees have not
completed the required years of service and they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
annual�reporting�period�in�which�the�employees�render�the�related�service.�

Provision is made for the company’s obligation for longͲterm employee benefits, which are measured at the present value of
the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and
salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the
terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for longͲterm employee benefits are
recognised�in�profit�or�loss�in�the�periods�in�which�the�changes�occur.

If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset,
being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset's carrying amount. Any excess of the
asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued�amount.�

ShortͲterm�employee�benefits

External sources of information include but are not limited to observable indications that an asset's value has declined during
the period by significantly more than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use. Internal sources of
information include but are not limited to evidence of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset and significant changes
with�an�adverse�effect�on�the�company�which�changes�the�way�in�which�an�asset�is�used�or�expected�to�be�used.

Provision is made for the company's obligation for shortͲterm employee benefits. ShortͲterm employee benefits are benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including salaries, wages, RDOs, annual leave and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required years
of�service.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable
amount�of�the�cashͲgenerating�unit�to�which�the�asset�belongs.

ShortͲterm employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is
settled. The company’s obligations for shortͲterm employee benefits such as salaries and wages are recognised as part of
current�trade�and�other�payables�in�the�statement�of�financial�position.

LongͲterm�employee�benefits

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the asset revaluation reserve in respect
of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the cumulative balance recorded in the
asset�revaluation�reserve�for�that�class�of�asset.
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(l) Trade�and�Other�Payables

(m) Provisions

(n) Goods�and�Services�Tax�(GST)

(o) Comparative�Figures

(p) Discontinued�Operations

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year where required
by�accounting�standards�or�as�a�result�of�changes�in�accounting�policy.

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the entity that remain unpaid at the end
of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 to 60 days of
recognition�of�the�liability.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to
suppliers.

If the company retrospectively applies an accounting policy, makes a retrospective restatement or reclassifies items in its
financial statements, a third statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period, in addition to the
minimum�comparative�financial�statements,�must�be�disclosed.

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in
receipts�from�customers�or�payments�to�suppliers.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable�from�the�Australian�Tax�Office�(ATO).

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured
using�the�best�estimate�of�the�amounts�required�to�settle�the�obligation�at�the�end�of�the�reporting�period.

In February 2020, the company announced it's decision to close the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in Timins
Street, Sunbury, from 13 March 2020. The decision to close was made after much consideration of all possible alternatives.
The directors believe the facility represented a separate component of the company as its operations could be clearly
distinguished�both�operationally�and�for�financial�reporting�purposes�from�the�rest�of�the�company.�

A discontinued operation is a component of the company that has been disposed of and represents a separate major line of
business.

The directors have presented and disclosed information than enables users of the financial statements to evaluate the
financial effects of discontinued operations. Whilst the discontinued operation occurred during the previous financial year, the
company has recognised material revenue from discontinued operations during the year ended 30 June 2021 following the
sale�of�its�residential�approved�bed�licences�in�November�2020.

|�24



Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

(p) Discontinued�Operations�(continued)

(q) Critical�Accounting�Estimates�and�Judgements

Key�Estimates

Impairment

Useful�life�of�property,�plant�and�equipment

Key�Judgements

The director's evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge
and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current
trends�and�economic�data,�obtained�both�externally�and�within�the�company.�

The directors assesses impairment at each reporting period by evaluating the conditions and events specific to the company
that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. ValueͲinͲuse calculations performed in assessing the recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates.

The directors review the estimated useful lives and corresponding depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment at the
end�of�each�annual�reporting�period.

Identifying�performance�obligations�under�AASB�15

A single amount has been disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income comprising the
surplus/(deficit) from discontinued operations, with further information disclosed at Note 4 of the financial statements. The
net cash flows attributable to operating, investing and financing activities of discontinued operations are disclosed separately
to�continuing�operations�within�the�statement�of�cash�flows.

To identify a performance obligation under AASB 15, the promise must be sufficiently specific to be able to determine when
the obligation is satisfied. Management exercises judgement to determine whether the promise is sufficiently specific by
taking into account any conditions specified in the arrangement, explicit or implicit, regarding the promised goods or services.
In making this assessment, management includes the nature/Ͳtype, cost/Ͳvalue, quantity and the period of transfer related to
the�goods�or�services�promised.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

Recognition�of�contract�modifications

A contract modification is a change in the scope or price (or both) of a contract, which may be approved in writing, by oral
agreement or implied by customary business practices. Restrictions introduced in response to the COVIDͲ19 pandemic have
impacted the company's ability to meet performance obligations under a range of its funding agreements and contracts. In
response, whilst the company has requested contract modifications in writing, in some instances the company has placed
reliance on contract modifications provided by oral agreement or customary business practices. Management applies
significant�judgement�when�recognising�a�contract�modification�based�on�agreement�or�customary�business�practices.

Determination�and�timing�of�revenue�recognition�under�AASB�15

For each revenue stream, the company applies significant judgement to determine when a performance obligation has been
satisfied�and�the�transaction�price�that�is�to�be�allocated�to�each�performance�obligation.
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(q) Critical�Accounting�Estimates�and�Judgements�(continued)

Ͳ

Ͳ

Ͳ

Fair�value�of�nonͲcurrent�assets

The company measures it's land and buildings (property, plant and equipment) at fair value. The company obtains
independent valuations for such nonͲcurrent assets at least every three years. At the end of each reporting period, the
directors update their assessment of the fair value of each nonͲcurrent asset to ensure the fair values recorded are materially
correct.

The company determines the likelihood to exercise the options on a leaseͲbyͲlease basis, looking at various factors such as
which�assets�are�strategic�and�which�are�key�to�future�strategy�of�the�company,�in�addition�to�the�following:

As at 30 June 2021, there are no potential future cash outflows excluded from the measurement of the lease liability as there
are�no�such�options�to�extend�included�in�the�company's�lease�agreements.

If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not to extend), the company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not�terminate).
If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the company is typically reasonably
certain�to�extend�(or�not�terminate).

The lease term is defined as the nonͲcancellable period of a lease together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and also periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The options that are reasonably going to be exercised is a
key�management�judgement�that�the�company�will�make.

Whilst the directors believe the fair value of the company's nonͲcurrent assets recorded at fair value are at risk of being
impacted by significant uncertainty that the COVIDͲ19 Coronavirus has caused across Australia, the directors believe the
carrying amount of such assets recorded at 30 June 2021 are materially consistent with the fair value that would be
determined�if�an�independent�valuation�was�performed�at�balance�date.

The directors determine a nonͲcurrent assets value using a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair
value is current prices in an active market for similar assets. Where such information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including current prices in an active market for assets of a different nature or recent
prices�of�similar�assets�in�less�active�markets.

Lease�term�and�option�to�extend�under�AASB�16

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

Otherwise, the company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption
required�to�replace�the�leased�asset.

Where land and buildings have not been independently valued at balance date, the directors estimate the fair value of land
and buildings at yearͲend with reference to the ValuerͲGeneral Victoria's land and buildings indexation factors in order to
determine whether or not there has been a material change in fair value since the a property was last independently valued
or�acquired/constructed.

A managerial adjustment is recognised if the assessment concludes that the fair value of an item of land or buildings has
changed by 10% or more since the last revaluation (whether that be the most recent independent valuation or managerial
valuation). An estimated change in fair value of less than 10% is deemed immaterial to the financial statements and no
adjustment�is�recorded.
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(q) Critical�Accounting�Estimates�and�Judgements�(continued)

To�determine�the�incremental�borrowing�rate,�the�company:

Ͳ

Ͳ

Provision�for�expected�credit�losses

(r) Economic�Dependence

For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119 Employee Benefits defines obligations for shortͲterm employee benefits as
obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. The company expects most employees will take their annual leave entitlements within
24 months of the reporting period in which they were earned, but this will not have a material impact on the amounts
recognised�in�respect�of�obligations�for�employees’�leave�entitlements.

Employee�benefits

The company assesses the long service leave liability in accordance with the requirements of AASB 119 Employee Benefits and�
applies probability factors reducing the balance of the liability on employees' balances that have not reached their vesting
period�i.e.�not�entitled�to�be�paid�out�at�balance�date.

The company is also dependent upon the Victorian Department of Health and Macedon Ranges Shire Council who provide the
company with the rightͲtoͲuse properties under peppercorn/concessionary lease arrangements. The company uses such
properties to deliver services to the community. At the date of this report the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the
company's�landlords�will�not�continue�to�support�the�company.

Current trade receivables are generally on 30Ͳday terms. In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade
receivables is used, taking into consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss. The provision for expected credit
losses�has�been�recorded�in�the�financial�statements.

Note�1. Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)

The company is dependent upon the Commonwealth and State Government, via the Victorian Department of Health and the
Victorian Department of Families, Fairness and Housing, the Commonwealth Department of Health, Dental Health Services
Victoria and the National Disability Insurance Agency for the receipt of funding used to operate a significant portion of the
company's services. At the date of this report the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the company's funding bodies
will�not�continue�to�support�the�company.

The probability factors are increased as the respective employees' years of service increase and are provided for at 100%
probability at vesting period (in accordance with employment conditions). The probability rates have been determined based
on�past�retention�data.�

Borrowing�rate�under�AASB�16

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for the company's leases, the company's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the rightͲofͲuse asset in a
similar�economic�environment�with�similar�terms,�security�and�conditions.

where possible, uses recent thirdͲparty financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes�in�financing�conditions�since�third�party�financing�was�received
makes�adjustments�specific�to�the�lease,�eg�term,�country,�currency�and�security.
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(s) Fair�Value�of�Assets�and�Liabilities

(t) Inventories

(u) New�Accounting�Standards�for�Application�in�Future�Periods

As fair value is a marketͲbased measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine
fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The
fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques.�These�valuation�techniques�maximise,�to�the�extent�possible,�the�use�of�observable�market�data.

"Fair value" is the price the company would sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced)
transaction�between�independent,�knowledgeable�and�willing�market�participants�at�the�measurement�date.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Inventories acquired at no cost or for nominal
consideration�are�measured�at�current�replacement�cost�as�at�the�date�of�acquisition.�

The company measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value either on a recurring or nonͲrecurring basis, depending
on�the�requirements�of�the�applicable�Accounting�Standards.�

For nonͲfinancial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset in
its�highest�and�best�use�or�to�sell�it�to�another�market�participant�that�would�use�the�asset�in�its�highest�and�best�use.

The fair value of liabilities and the entity's own equity instrument (if any) may be valued, where there is no observable market
price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable market information where such
instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and where
significant,�are�detailed�in�the�respective�note�to�the�financial�statements.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. market with the
greatest�volume�and�level�of�activity�for�the�asset�or�liability).�In�the�absence�of�such�a�market,�market�information�is�extracted�
from the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises
the receipts from the sale of the asset and minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account
transaction�costs�and�transport�costs).

An assessment of accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatory applicable to the
company�and�their�potential�impact�on�the�company�when�adopted�in�future�periods�is�discussed�below.

Note�1.

AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements Ͳ Simplified Disclosures for ForͲProfit and NotͲforͲProfit Tier 2 Entities
(March 2020) and associated amending Standards (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January
2021). Early application is permitted. When effective, this Standard, which is a standͲalone disclosure standard, will replace
the current Reduced Disclosure Requirements (RDR) Framework. Adoption is expected to result in more simplified disclosures
compared�to�the�current�RDR�Framework.

Summary�of�Significant�Accounting�Policies�(continued)
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2021 2020
Revenue�and�Other�Income $ $

Revenue�from�contracts�with�customers �����17,428,128� �����13,037,486�
Other�sources�of�income �������4,438,251� �������2,869,693�

�����21,866,379� �����15,907,179�

(a) Revenue�from�contracts�with�customers

Disaggregated�revenue

Categories�of�disaggregation

Commonwealth�and�State�Government�funding �����13,058,112� �������9,489,191�
National�Disability�Insurance�Scheme�funding �������2,177,702� �������1,573,709�
Fee�for�service �������2,001,448� �������1,843,935�
Other�revenue ����������190,866� ����������130,651�

Total�disaggregated�revenue�from�contracts�with�customers �����17,428,128� �����13,037,486�

Timing�of�revenue�recognition

Services�transferred�to�customers:

Ͳ at�a�point�in�time �������4,179,150� �������1,843,935�
Ͳ over�time �����13,248,978� �����11,193,551�

�����17,428,128� �����13,037,486�

(b) Other�sources�of�income

Interest�received�on�financial�assets �������������42,454� �������������27,733�
Donations�and�reimbursements ����������172,963� �������������36,140�
Auspice�fee �������������53,088� �������������56,526�
Rental�income ����������216,169� ����������230,496�
Dividends�received �������������76,522� �������������43,058�
Other�income�including�Government�stimulus �������3,508,792� �������1,998,803�
Net�gain�on�revaluation�of�property,�plant�and�equipment�from�continued�operations ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������471,351�
Gain�on�disposal�of�property,�plant�and�equipment ���������������������Ͳ��� ���������������5,586�
Unrealised�gain�on�investments ����������368,263� ���������������������Ͳ���

�������4,438,251� �������2,869,693�

2(a)

Note

2(b)

The company has disaggregated revenue by the nature of revenue and timing
of�revenue�recognition.

Note�2.

Due to social isolation measures introduced by the Commonwealth and State Governments, the company was unable to meet
a number of performance obligations under its contracts with customers. The company recognised contract modifications
from key funding bodies including the Victorian Department of Health, the Commonwealth Department of Health and Dental
Health Services Victoria (DHSV), waiving any unfulfilled performance obligations for relevant programs for the 2020/21
financial�year�due�to�the�challenges�presented�by�COVIDͲ19.�Refer�to�Note�1(a)�for�further�information.

This resulted in approximately $2.2m (2020: $867k) being recognised as income for the year ended 30 June 2021, which
would have otherwise been recognised as a contract liability in the statement of financial position until subsequent years
when�underlying�performance�obligations�were�fulfilled�or�no�longer�required�to�be�delivered.
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2021 2020
Material�Profit�or�Loss�Items $ $

(a) Employee�benefits�expense

Ͳ� Employment�expenses �����15,022,455� �����11,821,209�
Ͳ� Contributions�to�defined�contribution�superannuation�funds �������1,160,020� ����������944,514�

�����16,182,475� �����12,765,723�

(b) Depreciation�and�amortisation�expense

Property,�plant�and�equipment:

Ͳ� Buildings ����������229,811� �������������86,124�
Ͳ� Improvements �������������89,384� �������������41,710�
Ͳ� Motor�vehicle �������������70,305� �������������73,658�
Ͳ� Plant�and�equipment ����������113,784� ����������103,387�
Ͳ� Furniture�and�fittings �������������25,020� ���������������5,090�

����������528,304� ����������309,969�

RightͲofͲuse�assets:

Ͳ� Motor�vehicle �������������63,506� �������������13,987�

Total�depreciation�of�nonͲcurrent�assets ����������591,810� ����������323,956�

(c) Finance�costs

Ͳ� Other�finance�costs ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������33,742�
Ͳ� Lease�liability ���������������5,486� ���������������2,234�

���������������5,486� �������������35,976�

(d) Audit,�accreditation,�legal�and�consultancy�fees

Ͳ� Auditing�the�financial�report �������������61,500� �������������27,525�
Ͳ� Other�services ���������������������Ͳ��� ���������������3,075�

�������������61,500� �������������30,600�

(e) Other�expenses

Ͳ� Realised�loss�on�investments ���������������9,173� �������������14,784�
Ͳ� Realised�loss�on�disposal�of�property,�plant�and�equipment �������������44,741� ���������������������Ͳ���

�������������53,914� �������������14,784�

Note�3.

The company has identified a number of items which are material due to the
significance of their nature and/or amount. These are listed separately here to
provide�a�better�understanding�of�the�company's�financial�performance.

Audit, accreditation, legal and consultancy fees includes remuneration of the
company's external auditor, the Victorian AuditorͲGeneral's Office (2020:
Andrew�Frewin�Stewart),�for:

Note

Other�expenses�include�the�following�expenses:
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Discontinued�Operations

(a) Description

Ͳ
Ͳ
Ͳ

2021 2020
$ $

(b) Financial�performance

Revenue

Revenue�from�contracts�with�customers Ͳ������������������ 1,733,028�������
Other�sources�of�income 2,199,120������� 10,651������������

2,199,120������� 1,743,679�������

In February 2020, the company announced it's decision to close the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in Timins
Street,�Sunbury,�from�13�March�2020.�The�decision�to�close�was�made�after�much�consideration�of�all�possible�alternatives.

AASB 5 NonͲcurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations requires the company to reͲpresent the disclosures for
discontinued operations for prior periods presented in the financial statements so that the disclosures relate to all operations
that have been discontinued by the end of the reporting period for the latest period presented. In contrast, the balance sheet
information�for�the�prior�year�is�neither�restated�nor�remeasured.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the company obtained an independent valuation of the land and buildings used to
operate the facility. Whilst a $20,000 increment in the fair value of land was recorded via other comprehensive income
(offsetting decrements in the revaluation of other land held by the company), the buildings were considered fully impaired on
the�basis�of�the�following:

Buildings�were�no�longer�fit�for�purpose�and�were�deemed�functionally�obsolete
The�cost�of�making�buildings�fit�for�purpose�exceeded�their�ability�to�generate�cash�flows

4(b)(i)

The�buildings�could�not�be�reͲpurposed�without�considerable�cost.

Note�4.

Following the closure, in May 2020, the company entered into a Transfer of Places Agreement to sell its 33 approved
residential bed licences. The contract was subject to various terms and conditions, with settlement occurring in November
2020, resulting in a material gain on disposal which has been disclosed within other sources of revenue from discontinued
operations.

As the buildings are measured at fair value, during the year ended 30 June 2020 the company recorded a total loss on
revaluation from discontinued operations of $1,683,321, which was separately disclosed between other comprehensive
income�($612,804)�and�profit�or�loss�($1,070,517).

4(b)(ii)

Note

Other items of plant and equipment were either disposed of, redeployed to other areas of the organisation or were presented
as held for sale in the financial statements. Since the closure, the company has been able to temporarily utilise the buildings
to conduct COVIDͲ19 testing. As the asset has enabled the company to generate some cash flow since the closure, the
directors�assigned�a�conservative�nominal�fair�value�to�such�buildings�of�$50,000�at�30�June�2020.�The�buildings�has�since�been�
depreciated�during�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.
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2021 2020
Discontinued�Operations�(continued) $ $

(b) Financial�performance�(continued)

(i)� Revenue�from�contracts�with�customers

Categories�of�disaggregation

Commonwealth�and�State�Government�funding Ͳ������������������ 1,170,999�������
Fee�for�service Ͳ������������������ 426,816����������
Other�revenue Ͳ������������������ 135,213����������

Ͳ������������������ 1,733,028�������

Timing�of�revenue�recognition

Services�transferred�to�customers:

Ͳ over�time Ͳ������������������ 1,733,028�������

(ii)�Other�sources�of�income

Interest�received�on�financial�assets Ͳ������������������ 10,401������������
Other�income�including�Government�stimulus Ͳ������������������ 250�����������������
Gain�on�disposal�of�intangible�assets 2,199,120������� Ͳ������������������

2,199,120������� 10,651������������

Expenses

Employment�expenses Ͳ������������������ (1,640,506)
Contributions�to�defined�contribution�superannuation�funds Ͳ������������������ (117,895)
Depreciation�and�amortisation�expense Ͳ������������������ (55,549)
Interest�paid�on�refundable�accommodation�deposits Ͳ������������������ (9,295)
Utility�expenses Ͳ������������������ (37,283)
Audit,�accreditation,�legal�and�consultancy�fees Ͳ������������������ (17,124)
Staff�training�and�development�expenses Ͳ������������������ (8,692)
Client�support�services�expenses Ͳ������������������ (18,129)
General�program�supplies Ͳ������������������ (63,699)
Repairs�and�maintenance Ͳ������������������ (48,045)
Other�expenditure Ͳ������������������ (355,088)
Loss�on�revaluation�of�property,�plant�and�equipment Ͳ������������������ (1,070,517)

Total�expenses Ͳ������������������ (3,441,822)

Surplus/(Deficit)�before�income�tax�expense�from�discontinued�operations 2,199,120������� (1,698,143)

Income�tax�expense Ͳ����������������� Ͳ�����������������

Surplus/(Deficit)�after�income�tax�expense�from�discontinued�operations 2,199,120������� (1,698,143)

Note�4. Note

The company has disaggregated revenue by the nature of revenue and timing
of�revenue�recognition.
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2021 2020
Discontinued�Operations�(continued) $ $

(b) Financial�performance�(continued)

Other�comprehensive�income

Gain�on�revaluation�of�land�attributable�to�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ 20,000������������
Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings�attributable�to�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ (612,804)

Total�comprehensive�income/(loss)�attributable�to�members�from�discontinued�operations 2,199,120������� (2,290,947)

(c) Financial�position

Merger

(a) Description

(b) Amounts�recognised�on�merger�date

Current�assets $

Cash�and�cash�equivalents 4,316,181�������
Trade�and�other�receivables 303,548����������
Other�assets 65,580������������

Total�current�assets 4,685,309������

NonͲcurrent�assets

Property,�plant�and�equipment 10,545,917����

Total�nonͲcurrent�assets 10,545,917����

Total�assets 15,231,226����

Current�liabilities

Trade�and�other�payables 2,829,197�������
Provisions 598,540����������
Lease�liabilities 108,732����������

Total�current�liabilities 3,536,469������

Note�5.

On 1 January 2021, Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited acquired the following assets and assumed the following
liabilities from Cobaw Community Health Services Limited, which were transferred at their carrying amounts for nil
consideration,�giving�rise�to�a�gain�on�bargain�purchase�of�$11,315,488�which�is�recognised�in�profit�or�loss.

On 1 January 2021, Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited merged with Cobaw Community Health Services Limited.
Sunbury Community Health Services Limited has remained as the entity that has continued on, and has subsequently changed
its�business�name�to�Sunbury�and�Cobaw�Community�Health.

The merger has enabled Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited to expand opportunities for health and community
services�across�Sunbury�and�the�Macedon�Ranges.

Note�4. Note

Following the closure of the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in March 2020, the company has no asset or
liabilities�from�discontinued�operations�to�disclose�at�30�June�2021�(30�June�2020:�nil).
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Merger�(continued)

NonͲcurrent�liabilities $

Provisions 336,678����������
Lease�liabilities 42,591������������

Total�nonͲcurrent�liabilities 379,269���������

Total�liabilities 3,915,738������

Net�assets 11,315,488����

(c) Changes�in�accounting�policies,�key�judgements�and�estimates

Subsequent�measurement�of�land�and�buildings

Note�5.

Cobaw Community Health Services Limited prepares general purpose financial statements and therefore applies the
recognition and measurement requirements of Australian Accounting Standards. The merged entity therefore applies the
same�accounting�rules�when�recognising�and�measuring�assets,�liabilities�and�retained�earnings.

Net assets acquired by Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited have been disclosed as an adjustment to retained earnings
at 30 June 2021 which is presented within other comprehensive income for the year then ended. Cash and cash equivalents
acquired by Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited have been disclosed as an inflow generated from investing activities
within�the�cash�flow�statement.

When applying Australian Accounting Standards, both entities apply a range of accounting policy choices, key judgements and
key�estimates�when�preparing�their�financial�statements,�which�are�required�to�be�applied�consistently�by�the�merged�entity.

Where policies, judgements and estimates applied by Cobaw Community Health Services Limited differ materially to Sunbury
Community Health Centre Limited, adjustments are required in the preparation of the financial statements for the merged
entity where the impact of such differences is considered material. The directors have performed an assessment to determine
whether�any�adjustments�were�required�as�detailed�below.

When measuring land and buildings, Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited has applied an accounting policy choice
whereby it subsequently measures land and buildings at fair value. In comparison, Cobaw Community Health Services Limited
measures�buildings�at�historical�cost.

Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited has applied its accounting policy to such assets acquired as part of the merger,
whereby�buildings�acquired�have�been�recognised�at�fair�value�at�30�June�2021.�

An independent valuation of acquired buildings had not been undertaken at balance date. The directors have therefore
performed an assessment to determine the approximate fair value of acquired buildings at 30 June 2021. The assessment
concludes that the acquired buildings were recently constructed in June 2020 and that the cost of such buildings at the time
of�completion�was�considered�materially�consistent�with�its�fair�value�on�that�date.
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Merger�(continued)

Recognition�and�measurement�of�rightͲofͲuse�assets�and�lease�liabilities

2021 2020
Cash�and�Cash�Equivalents $ $

CURRENT
Cash�at�bank �������8,302,141� �������2,835,887�
Cash�on�hand 1,375�������������� 1,868��������������

Total�cash�and�cash�equivalents �������8,303,516� �������2,837,755�

Trade�and�Other�Receivables

CURRENT
Trade�receivables ����������799,046� ����������935,332�
Provision�for�expected�credit�losses (18,583) (27,206)

����������780,463� ����������908,126�

Amount�receivable�from�Hume�Whittlesea�Primary�Care�Partnership �������������95,031� �������������11,717�

Total�trade�and�other�receivables ����������875,494� ����������919,843�

Inventories

CURRENT
Inventories�at�cost �������������29,699� �������������27,261�

Note�7.

Note�8.

22

Note�6.

22

Note

Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited acquired $10,545,917 of property, plant and equipment from Cobaw Community
Health Services Limited as part of the merger. Included within the acquired balance is $830,000 of land, for which the
aforementioned�buildings�are�built�on.

Note�5.

The directors elected to disclose this land as a rightͲofͲuse asset and lease liability in Sunbury Community Health Centre
Limited's financial statements at merger date and balance date as the company did not hold title to the land. Rather, the
company had entered into a licence agreement and contract of sale which the directors concluded met the definition of a
lease�for�accounting�purposes�that�contained�a�purchase�option�that�the�directors�are�reasonable�certain�to�exercise.

The directors have also presented other rightͲofͲuse assets relating to motor vehicles and properties within rightͲofͲuse assets
as�opposed�to�property,�plant�and�equipment.�These�changes�had�no�impact�on�the�company's�net�assets�at�merger�date.

With reference to ValuerͲGeneral Victoria indexation rates, the directors have estimated possible changes in fair value since
the buildings were constructed, concluding that there had been no material change in fair value. The directors plan to
undertake�an�independent�valuation�of�the�acquired�buildings�within�the�next�12�months.
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2021 2020
Other�Assets $ $

CURRENT
Prepaid�expenses �������������64,587� �������������81,239�

Assets�Classified�as�Held�for�Sale

CURRENT
Plant�and�equipment�measured�at�fair�value�less�costs�to�sell ���������������������Ͳ��� 44,908������������

Investments

NONͲCURRENT
Financial�assets�at�fair�value�through�profit�or�loss:
Ͳ Listed�shares �������4,305,599� �������1,224,615�
Ͳ Annuities� 547,000���������� 200,000����������

�������4,852,599� �������1,424,615�

Property,�Plant�and�Equipment

NONͲCURRENT

Land�and�buildings

Freehold�land:�
At�fair�value �������4,719,945� �������3,790,000�

Buildings:�
At�fair�value 10,290,265���� 2,180,000�������
Less�accumulated�depreciation (229,811) Ͳ������������������

10,060,454���� �������2,180,000�

Total�land�and�buildings 14,780,399���� �������5,970,000�

Plant�and�equipment

Leasehold�improvements:
At�cost 1,478,032������� 399,175����������
Less�accumulated�depreciation (210,307) (120,452)

1,267,725������� ����������278,723�

Motor�vehicles:
At�cost 507,485���������� 507,485����������
Less�accumulated�depreciation (441,707) (371,402)

65,778������������ ����������136,083�

Plant�and�equipment:
At�cost 984,498���������� 692,856����������
Less�accumulated�depreciation (535,546) (422,860)

448,952���������� ����������269,996�

Note�9.

Note�11.

22

Note

Note�10.

Note�12.
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2021 2020
Property,�Plant�and�Equipment�(continued) $ $

Furniture�and�fittings:
At�cost 241,794���������� 32,359������������
Less�accumulated�depreciation (48,260) (23,240)

193,534���������� ���������������9,119�

Total�property,�plant�and�equipment 16,756,388���� �������6,663,921�

Movements�in�carrying�amounts:

Land Buildings
Balance�at�1�July�2020 3,790,000������� 2,180,000������� 136,083���������� 269,996����������
Additions 552,780���������� 201,497���������� Ͳ������������������ 78,667������������
Acquisition�from�merger Ͳ������������������ 8,076,023������� Ͳ������������������ 217,892����������
Revaluation�increment/gain 377,165���������� Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������
Disposals Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������ (3,819)
Revaluation�decrement/impairment�loss Ͳ������������������ (167,255) Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������
Depreciation�expense Ͳ������������������ (229,811) (70,305) (113,784)
Balance�at�30�June�2021 4,719,945������ 10,060,454���� 65,778����������� 448,952���������

Total
Balance�at�1�July�2020 9,119�������������� 6,663,921������
Additions Ͳ������������������ 871,463���������
Additions�from�merger 209,435���������� 9,543,217������
Revaluation�increment/gain Ͳ������������������ 377,165���������
Disposals Ͳ������������������ (3,819)
Revaluation�decrement/impairment�loss Ͳ������������������ (167,255)
Depreciation�expense (25,020) (528,304)
Balance�at�30�June�2021 193,534��������� 16,756,388����

�Motor�
Vehicles�

Movements in carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the
current�financial�year.

�Plant�and�
Equipment�

The most recent independent valuation reports included significant uncertainty disclaimers, stating the COVIDͲ19 Coronavirus
has caused significant uncertainty in the property market, with market conditions changing daily at present, which may result
in�a�material�adjustment�to�the�fair�value�of�land�and�buildings�in�the�future.

With the exception of buildings acquired from the merger with Cobaw Community Health Services Limited on 1 January 2021,
the company's land and buildings were independently valued during the year ended 30 June 2020 by Knight Frank Valuations.
The valuation was based on the fair value less cost to sell based on an active market. The critical assumptions adopted in
determining the valuation included the location of the land and buildings, the current demand for land and buildings in the
area�and�recent�sales�data�for�similar�properties.

�
Improvements�

1,039,867�������

278,723����������
38,519������������

1,267,725������

Ͳ������������������

Ͳ������������������

�Furniture�and�
Fittings�

(89,384)

Ͳ������������������

Since independent valuations were not obtained at 30 June 2021, the directors have performed an assessment with reference
to the ValuerͲGeneral Victoria's land and building indexation factors for the year ended 30 June 2021 in order to determine
whether or not there has been a material change in fair value since the date the valuations were performed, or in the case for
building�acquired�as�part�of�the�merger,�since�such�buildings�were�constructed.

Note�12.

|�37



Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

Property,�Plant�and�Equipment�(continued)

2021 2020
$ $

Continuing�operations

Other�income:

Ͳ Gain�on�revaluation�of�buildings Ͳ������������������ 531,415����������
Ͳ Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings Ͳ������������������ (60,064)

Impairment�of�buildings (167,255) Ͳ������������������

Net�gain/(loss)�on�revaluation�of�property,�plant�and�equipment (167,255) 471,351����������

Discontinued�operations

Deficit�after�tax�from�discontinued�operations:

Ͳ Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ (1,070,517)4(b)

Following the closure of the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care Facility in March 2020, the buildings were considered
impaired (refer to Note 4(a) for further information). As the company measures its land and buildings under the revaluation
model, impairment of land and buildings has been recorded as a loss on revaluation. The company recorded a $1,683,321 loss
on revaluation of buildings from discontinued operations during the year ended 30 June 2020, of which $612,804 is presented
within other comprehensive income and $1,070,517 is presented within profit or loss. A $20,000 gain on revaluation of land
from�discontinued�operations�was�also�presented�within�other�comprehensive�income�for�the�year�ended�30�June�2020.

The loss on revaluation was recorded against the asset revaluation reserve to the extent it reverses a previous cumulative
revaluation increment for the same asset class. Further revaluation decrements have been recognised in profit or loss
alongside any subsequent gains on revaluation that reverse a previous revaluation loss recorded in profit or loss. Gains and
losses�on�revaluation�of�land�and�buildings�are�disclosed�between�continuing�and�discontinued�operations.

The managerial assessment performed at 30 June 2021 indicated an 11% ($377,165) increase in fair value of the company's
residential land and therefore an adjustment was recorded. The managerial assessment indicated there had been no change
to the fair value of the company's commercial land. With respect to the company's buildings, management concluded that the
increase in fair value was approximately $261,000 since the last independent valuation, which is less than 10% of the total
value�of�buildings�and�therefore�no�adjustment�has�been�recognised.

In March 2021 the company purchased a new residential property for $724,202, which consisted of residential land and
buildings. At 30 June 2021 the directors concluded the value of such buildings acquired in this transaction, being $167,255,
was considered impaired. This is because the directors intend to demolish the buildings in a subsequent reporting period as
the building is not fit for purpose in its current state and could not be improved to generate cash flows. The impairment loss
was�recorded�in�profit�or�loss�as�there�was�no�cumulative�revaluation�increment�recorded�for�buildings�at�balance�date.

The impact of revaluation of land and buildings on the statement of profit or
loss�and�other�comprehensive�income�is�summarised�below:

A managerial adjustment is recognised if the assessment concludes that the fair value of an item of land or buildings has
changed by 10% or more since the last revaluation (whether that be the most recent independent valuation or managerial
valuation). An estimated change in fair value of less than 10% is deemed immaterial to the financial statements and no
adjustment�is�recorded.

Note�12.

Note
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2021 2020
Property,�Plant�and�Equipment�(continued) $ $

Other�comprehensive�income

Items�that�will�not�be�reclassified�to�profit�or�loss:

Continuing�operations:

Ͳ Gain/(Loss)�on�revaluation�of�land�from�continuing�operations 377,165���������� (97,470)

Discontinued�operations:

Ͳ Gain�on�revaluation�of�land�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ 20,000������������
Ͳ Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ (612,804)

Net�loss�on�revaluation�of�land�and�buildings�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ (592,804)

Total�items�that�will�not�be�reclassified�to�profit�or�loss 377,165���������� (690,274)

Total�comprehensive�loss�from�revaluation�of�land�and�buildings 209,910���������� (1,289,440)

Ͳ continuing�operations 209,910���������� 373,881����������
Ͳ discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ (1,663,321)

209,910���������� (1,289,440)

RightͲofͲUse�Assets

NONͲCURRENT

Leased�property
At�cost 844,001���������� Ͳ������������������
Accumulated�depreciation (1,155) Ͳ������������������

842,846���������� ���������������������Ͳ���

Leased�motor�vehicles:
At�cost 335,957���������� 83,924������������
Accumulated�depreciation (196,390) (13,987)

139,567���������� �������������69,937�

Total�rightͲofͲuse�assets 982,413���������� 69,937������������

AASB�16�related�amounts�recognised�in�profit�or�loss

Depreciation�charge�related�to�rightͲofͲuse�assets �������������63,506� 13,987������������
Interest�expense�on�lease�liabilities ���������������5,486� 2,234��������������
LowͲvalue�lease�expense �������������19,344� 13,830������������

88,336������������ 30,051������������

Total comprehensive loss following the revaluation of land and buildings
arising�from:

Note�13.

Note�12.
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RightͲofͲUse�Assets�(continued)

Movements�in�carrying�amounts:

Total
Balance�at�1�July�2020 69,937������������ 69,937�����������
Additions�from�merger 133,136���������� 975,982���������
Depreciation�expense (63,506) (63,506)
Balance�at�30�June�2021 139,567��������� 982,413���������

Options�to�extend�or�terminate

Concessionary/peppercorn�lease

�Leased�motor�
vehicles�

The company holds a 21Ͳyear concessionary lease with Macedon Ranges Shire Council, for the use of land and buildings
located at 142 Main Street, Romsey, which are used to conduct community services. The lease payments are $1 (exͲGST) per
annum.

The company holds a 30Ͳyear concessionary lease with Macedon Ranges Shire Council, for the use of land and buildings
located at 47Ͳ49 Forest Street, Woodend, which are used to conduct community services. The lease payments are equal to 1%
of�the�market�rent�per�annum.�

These concessionary leases are measured at cost in accordance with the company's accounting policy as outlined in Note 1(g).
The rightͲofͲuse asset and lease liability relating to these leases is considered trivial to the financial statements. As such, a
rightͲofͲuse asset and lease liability has not been recognised on the statement of financial position. The company is
dependent on these lease arrangements to further its objectives. Without these concessionary leases, the company's service
delivery to the community would be impacted. More information on the concessionary leases are available as described in
Note�1(g).

�Leased�
property�

Ͳ������������������

Ͳ������������������
842,846���������

There are no extension or termination options included in the company's lease arrangements which the company is
reasonably�certain�to�exercise.

The company holds a 20Ͳyear concessionary lease with the Department of Health, formerly referred to as the Department of
Health and Human Services, which represents the Victorian Government, for the use of land and buildings located at 12Ͳ28
Macedon Street, Sunbury, which are used to conduct services in accordance with the company's Service Agreement with the
Department of Health. The company may not use this space for any other purpose during the lease term without prior
consent of the Department of Health and Human Services. The lease payments are $104 (exͲGST) per annum, payable yearly
in�advance.

The board have considered the terms and conditions of the licence agreement and believe it gives rise to a concessionary
lease. However the licence also references the contract of sale, which specifies an agreed purchase price that the company is
reasonably�certain�to�exercise.

Since merging with Cobaw Community Health Services Limited on 1 January 2021, the company holds a licence agreement
with Central Highlands Rural Health to use land at 1 Caroline Chisholm Drive, Kyneton. Prior to entering into the licence, the
company entered into a contract of sale to purchase the land, however settlement is yet to occur. The licence provides the
company�with�the�ability�to�use�the�land�up�until�settlement�date�for�consideration�of�$1�per�week�until�settlement�date.

Note�13.

842,846����������

The increase in accumulated depreciation is not equal to depreciation expense for the year ended 30 June 2021 as the
company�recognised�rightͲofͲuse�assets�and�accumulated�depreciation�acquired�in�the�merger�on�a�gross�basis.

Movements in carrying amounts for each class of rightͲofͲuse asset between the beginning and the end of the current
financial�year.
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RightͲofͲUse�Assets�(continued)

2021 2020
Trade�and�Other�Payables $ $

CURRENT
Accounts�payable ����������794,772� 800,147����������
Contract�liability �������1,061,349� 618,293����������
Unspent�capital�grants ����������447,115� Ͳ������������������
Client�subsidies�payable�(Home�Care�Package) ����������836,176� 644,823����������
Accrued�salaries ����������629,703� 227,081����������
Other�payables ����������111,344� 112,439����������
Payable�to�the�ATO ����������434,871� 260,403����������

Total�trade�and�other�payables �������4,315,330� �������2,663,186�

Financial�liabilities�at�amortised�cost�classified�as�trade�and�other�payables
Trade�and�other�payables:
Ͳ total�current �������4,315,330� 2,663,186�������

Less�amounts�payable�to�the�ATO (434,871) (260,403)
Less�contract�liability (1,061,349) (618,293)

Total�financial�liabilities�classified�as�trade�and�other�payables �������2,819,110� �������1,784,490�

Provisions

CURRENT
Provision�for�annual�leave �������1,139,182� 670,173����������
Provision�for�time�in�lieu�(TIL)�and�rostered�days�off�(RDO's) �������������33,659� 42,589������������
Provision�for�long�service�leave �������1,499,269� 1,075,443�������

2,672,110������� �������1,788,205�

NONͲCURRENT
Provision�for�long�service�leave ����������866,064� ����������516,685�

Total�provisions �������3,538,174� �������2,304,890�

Note�14.

Provisions�represents�amounts�accrued�for�annual�leave,�RDO,�TIL�and�long�service�leave.

22

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for employee entitlements and the amounts accrued
for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of service. Based
on past experience, the company does not expect the full amount of employee entitlements or long service leave balances
classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months. These amounts, however, must be classified as current
liabilities since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event
employees�wish�to�use�their�leave�entitlement.

Note�15.

Note

Accordingly, the company has recognised a rightͲofͲuse asset of $830,000 and lease liability of $754,545, being the agreed
purchase price less a deposit already paid to the seller at balance date. The rightͲofͲuse asset excludes the $1 per week
consideration payable as it is deemed trivial. Furthermore, the rightͲofͲuse asset is not subject to depreciation as the land is
deemed to have an unlimited useful life. Once settlement occurs, the rightͲofͲuse asset will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment at which point the directors will undertaken an independent valuation to subsequently measure the land at
fair�value.

Note�13.
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Provisions�(continued)

2021 2020
Lease�Liabilities $ $

CURRENT
Lease�liability 875,778���������� 30,497������������
Unexpired�interest (1,385) (3,334)

����������874,393� 27,163������������

NONͲCURRENT
Lease�liability 33,669������������ 45,744������������
Unexpired�interest (612) (1,997)

�������������33,057� 43,747������������

Total�lease�liabilities ����������907,450� 70,910������������

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability rates have been
determined based on historical employee retention data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee benefits
have�been�discussed�in�Note�1(k).

Note�16. Note

The nonͲcurrent portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet
vested�in�relation�to�those�employees�who�have�not�yet�completed�the�required�period�of�service.

The�leases�for�motor�vehicles�have�threeͲyear�lease�terms,�with�payments�required�monthly�in�advance.�The�lease�agreements�
do�not�include�optional�terms�or�purchase�options.

22

The company also holds three concessionary/peppercorn leases, whereby the company's lease payments are significantly less
than fair value. The company's lease liability with respect to such lease arrangements is considered trivial and has therefore
not been recognised as a lease liability in the financial statements. Refer to Note 13 for further information regarding the
company's�concessionary�lease�arrangements.

The lease for the land at 1 Caroline Chisholm Drive, Kyneton, which is leased on a monthͲtoͲmonth basis, includes a purchase
option within a contract of sale which the company is reasonably certain to exercise. The purchase option is expected to be
exercised�within�the�next�12�months.

Note�15.
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2021 2020
Cash�Flow�Information $ $

Reconciliation�of�surplus/(deficit)�to�net�cash�provided�by�operating�activities

Surplus/(Deficit)�attributable�to�members�of�the�entity�after�income�tax�expense 15,696,084���� (722,330)

Non�cash�items�included�in�surplus�after�income�tax�expense:
Ͳ Depreciation�and�amortisation�expense�from�continued�operations 591,810���������� 323,956����������
Ͳ Depreciation�and�amortisation�expense�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ 55,549������������
Ͳ Net�(gain)/loss�on�disposal�of�property,�plant�and�equipment 44,741������������ (5,586)
Ͳ Net�(gain)�on�revaluation/impairment�of�buildings�from�continued�operations 167,255���������� (471,351)
Ͳ Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ 1,070,517�������
Ͳ Net�gain�on�disposal�of�intangible�assets (2,199,120) Ͳ������������������
Ͳ Unrealised�(gain)/loss�on�investments (368,263) 14,784������������
Ͳ Realised�loss�on�investments 9,173�������������� Ͳ������������������
Ͳ Gain�on�bargain�purchase�from�merger (11,315,488) Ͳ������������������

Changes�in�assets�and�liabilities:
Ͳ (Increase)/decrease�in�trade�and�other�receivables 343,623���������� (211,978)
Ͳ Increase�in�other�assets 82,232������������ 29,969������������
Ͳ (Increase)/decrease�in�inventories�on�hand (2,438) 4,262��������������
Ͳ Increase/(decrease)�in�payables (418,234) 650,279����������
Ͳ Increase/(decrease)�in�provisions 298,066���������� (142,820)

Net�cash�flows�provided�by�operating�activities �������2,929,441� ����������595,251�

Capital�and�Leasing�Commitments

(a)� ShortͲTerm�and�LowͲValue�Lease�Commitments

(b) Capital�Expenditure�Commitments

Contingent�Liabilities�and�Contingent�Assets

Contingent�liabilities

Contingent�assets

Note�19.

The�company's�directors�are�not�aware�of�any�other�contingent�assets�as�at�the�date�of�signing�this�financial�report.

The�company�has�no�material�capital�expenditure�commitments�contracted�for�but�not�disclosed�in�the�financial�statements.

Note�17.

The company has no material shortͲterm or lowͲvalue lease commitments contracted for but not capitalised in the financial
statements.

At 30 June 2020, the directors disclosed a contingent asset in relation to the sale of its 33 approved residential bed licenses.
Whilst the company entered into a Transfer of Places Agreement to sell the licences in May 2020, settlement did not occur
until November 2020 at which point the company recorded a material gain on disposal of intangible assets. The gain has been
disclosed�within�other�sources�of�revenue�from�discontinued�operations�for�the�year�ended�30�June�2021.

Note�18.

The�company's�directors�are�not�aware�of�any�contingent�liabilities�as�at�the�date�of�signing�this�financial�report�(2020:�nil).
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Events�after�the�Reporting�Period

2021 2020
Key�Management�Personnel�and�Related�Parties $ $

ShortͲterm�employee�benefits ����������947,585� ����������911,354�
PostͲemployment�benefits �������������89,715� �������������83,866�

�������1,037,300� ����������995,220�

The�company's�KMP�include:

- Board�of�directors
- Chief�Executive�Officer
- General�Manager�Aged�Care,�Disability�&�Clinical�Services
- General�Manager�Child�&�Youth�Development
- General�Manager�Quality,�Culture�&�Infrastructure
- Chief�Financial�Officer
- General�Manager�Building�Health�Communities
- General�Manager�Community�Services

The State Government issued lockdown restrictions for Metropolitan Melbourne and regional Victoria on 5 August 2021.
Lockdown restrictions were subsequently eased in regional Victoria on 9 August 2021 before subsequently being eased for
Metropolitan Melbourne on 21 October 2021. The State of Emergency in Victoria was extended on 26 August 2021 and
remained in place until 21 October 2021. The company's directors are not aware of any other significant events since the end
of�the�reporting�period.

Note�21.

Total�remuneration�paid�to�the�KMP�of�the�company�are�as�follows:

Note�20.

The COVIDͲ19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and conditions in the
future may be materially different from those estimated by the company at the reporting date. Management recognises that
it is difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after the reporting date on
the�company,�its�operations,�its�future�results�and�financial�position.

Key management personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the
company. Outside of normal citizen type transactions with the company, there were no related party transactions that
involved�KMP,�their�close�family�members�and/or�their�personal�business�interests.
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2021 2020
Financial�Risk�Management $ $

Financial�assets
Financial�assets�at�amortised�cost:
- Cash�and�cash�equivalents �������8,303,516� �������2,837,755�
- Trade�and�other�receivables ����������875,494� ����������919,843�

Financial�assets�at�fair�value�through�profit�or�loss:
- Investments �������4,852,599� �������1,424,615�

Total�financial�assets �����14,031,609� �������5,182,213�

Financial�liabilities
Financial�liabilities�at�amortised�cost:
Ͳ trade�and�other�payables �������2,819,110� �������1,784,490�
Ͳ lease�liabilities ����������907,450� 70,910������������

Total�financial�liabilities �������3,726,560� �������1,855,400�

Reserves

Asset�revaluation�reserve

�Buildings� Total
Balance�at�1�July�2019 612,804���������� 1,527,804������
Revaluation�decrement�from�continuing�operations Ͳ������������������ (97,470)
Revaluation�increment�from�discontinued�operations Ͳ������������������ 20,000�����������
Revaluation�decrement�from�discontinued�operations (612,804) (612,804)
Balance�at�30�June�2020 Ͳ������������������ 837,530���������
Balance�at�1�July�2020 Ͳ������������������ 837,530���������
Revaluation�increment�from�continuing�operations Ͳ������������������ 377,165���������
Balance�at�30�June�2021 Ͳ������������������ 1,214,695������

In comparison, if the carrying amount of a class of assets decreased as a result of a revaluation, the net revaluation decrease
shall be recognised in profit or loss. However, the net revaluation decrease shall be recognised in other comprehensive
income�to�the�extent�of�any�credit�balance�existing�in�the�revaluation�reserve�in�respect�of�that�same�class�of�asset.�

Note�22.

Note�23.

�Land�

837,530����������
377,165����������

If the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the net revaluation increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the asset revaluation reserve. However, the net revaluation
increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent it reverses a net revaluation decrease of the same class of assets
previously�recognised�in�profit�or�loss.

The company's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks,
local money market instruments, accounts receivable, listed shares, managed
funds, annuities, accounts payable and lease liabilities. The carrying amounts
for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB
9 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as
follows:

1,214,695�������

6
7

14
16

837,530����������
Ͳ������������������

915,000����������
(97,470)
20,000������������

Note

The asset revaluation reserve records the revaluation of land and buildings. A reconciliation of movements to/(from) the asset
revaluation�reserve�via�other�comprehensive�income�is�disclosed�as�follows.

11

|�45



Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

Reserves�(continued)

Asset�replacement�reserve

Registered�Office/Principal�Place�of�Business

The�registered�office�and�principle�place�of�business�of�the�company�is:

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited
12Ͳ28�Macedon�Street
Sunbury,�VIC,�3429

The asset replacement reserve records retained earnings allocated to the future replacement of assets. There were no
movements�in�the�asset�replacement�reserve�for�the�year�ended�30�June�2021�(2020:�nil).

Note�24.

Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property, plant and equipment are offset
against�one�another�within�that�class�but�are�not�offset�in�respect�of�assets�in�different�classes.

Note�23.
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Residential�Aged�Care�Segment�Ͳ�Sunbury�Lions�Community�Aged�Care�Ͳ�NAPS�ID�3461�RAC�Service�ID�3187

2021 2020
$ $

Revenue

Care�income ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,021,836�
Accommodation�income ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������353,105�
Other�resident�fee�income ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������357,362�
Financing�income ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������10,401�
Other�Income �������2,199,120� ������������������975�

Total�revenue �������2,199,120� �������1,743,679�

Expenditure

Care�expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,406,410�
Accommodation�expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������193,743�
Catering,�cleaning�&�laundry�expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������339,824�
Administration�expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������140,938�
Capital�and�financing�expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������64,844�
Expenses�relating�to�discontinued�operations ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,296,063�

Total�expenditure ���������������������Ͳ��� �������3,441,822�

Surplus/(Deficit)�before�income�tax�expense 2,199,120������� (1,698,143)

Income�tax�expense Ͳ������������������ Ͳ������������������

Surplus/(Deficit)�after�income�tax�expense 2,199,120������� (1,698,143)

Other�comprehensive�income

Gain�on�revaluation�of�land Ͳ������������������ 20,000������������
Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings Ͳ������������������ (612,804)

Total�comprehensive�income/(loss) 2,199,120������� (2,290,947)

Note�25a.�Care�income

Subsidies�&�Supplements�(Commonwealth) ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,002,404�
Resident�Fees�Ͳ�Means�Tested�Care�Fees ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������19,432�

���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,021,836�

Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited NAPS ID 3461, RAC Service ID 3187 traded as Sunbury Lions Community Aged
Care,�which�was�discontinued�in�March�2020.�This�operating�segment�has�the�following�financial�information�to�report.

25b

Sunbury�Lions�Community�Aged�Care�

The following financial information is prepared using specific classes of transactions required by the Department of Health
(DoH), for which the company is required to report for this segment each year. Whilst the class of transactions disclosed
below are based on DoH's specific requirements, which may differ to those classes of transactions disclosed within the rest of
the financial statements, the directors note total revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities for the segment note below
reconciles�to�the�financial�information�disclosed�at�Note�4�of�the�financial�statements.

25d

Note

25c

Note�25.

25k

25e

25f
25g
25h

25a

25i
25j

Income�Statement�for�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021
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2021 2020
Note�25b.�Accommodation�income $ $

Subsidies�&�Supplements�(Commonwealth) ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������168,595�
Resident�Accommodation�Payments�and�Charges ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������182,446�
Accommodation�Bond�retention�amounts ���������������������Ͳ��� ���������������2,064�

���������������������Ͳ��� ����������353,105�

Note�25c.�Other�Resident�Fee�Income

Basic�Daily�Fee ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������357,362�

���������������������Ͳ��� ����������357,362�

Note�25d.�Financing�Income

Interest�Income ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������10,401�

���������������������Ͳ��� �������������10,401�

Note�25e.�Other�Income

Donations�and�Fundraising ���������������������Ͳ��� ������������������725�
Gain�on�Sale�of�Intangible�Assets �������2,199,120� ���������������������Ͳ���
Other�Income ���������������������Ͳ��� ������������������250�

�������2,199,120� ������������������975�

Note�25f.�Care�Expenses

Labour�Costs ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,322,894�
Other�Expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������83,516�

���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,406,410�

Note�25g.�Accommodation�Expenses

Labour�Costs ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������108,415�
Property�Repairs,�Maintenance�&�Replacements ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������48,045�
Other�Accommodation�Expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������37,283�

���������������������Ͳ��� ����������193,743�

Note�25h.�Catering,�Cleaning�&�Laundry�Expenses

Labour�Costs ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������194,876�
Contracted�Services�Ͳ�External�Service�Organisations ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������33,556�
Other�Catering,�Cleaning�&�Laundry�Expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������111,392�

���������������������Ͳ��� ����������339,824�

Note�25. Residential�Aged�Care�Segment�Ͳ�Sunbury�Lions�Community�Aged�Care�Ͳ�NAPS�ID�3461�RAC�Service�ID�3187�
(continued)
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Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Notes�to�the�Financial�Statements
For�the�Year�Ended�30�June�2021

2021 2020
Note�25i.�Administration�Expenses $ $

Labour�Costs ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������98,660�
Other�Administration�Expenses ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������42,278�

���������������������Ͳ��� ����������140,938�

Note�25j.�Capital�and�Financing�Expenses

Depreciation� ���������������������Ͳ��� �������������55,549�
Interest�Expense ���������������������Ͳ��� ���������������9,295�

���������������������Ͳ��� �������������64,844�

Note�25k.�Expenses�Relating�to�Discontinued�Operations

Costs�relating�to�closure�of�residential�aged�care ���������������������Ͳ��� ����������225,546�
Loss�on�revaluation�of�buildings ���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,070,517�

���������������������Ͳ��� �������1,296,063�

Hume�Whittlesea�Primary�Care�Partnership�

No revenue, expenses, assets, or liabilities of Hume Whittlesea Primary Care Partnership are included in that of Sunbury
Community�Health�Centre�Limited,�as�this�program�is�auspiced.

Following the closure of the Sunbury Lions Community Aged Care facility in March 2020, the company has no asset or
liabilities�from�discontinued�operations�to�disclose�at�30�June�2021�(2020:�nil).

On 1 March 2013, Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited became the auspicing agency of the Hume Whittlesea Primary
Care�Partnership.

Statement�of�Financial�Position�as�at�30�June�2021

Residential�Aged�Care�Segment�Ͳ�Sunbury�Lions�Community�Aged�Care�Ͳ�NAPS�ID�3461�RAC�Service�ID�3187�
(continued)

Sunbury�Lions�Community�Aged�Care

Note�25.

Note�26.
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1.

a.�

b.�

2.

Peter�Donlon Janelle�Parry
Chairperson Deputy�Chairperson

Dated:�28�October�2021

This declaration is signed in accordance with subs 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and NotͲforͲprofits Commission
Regulation�2013.

In the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and
when�they�become�due�and�payable.

Sunbury�Community�Health�Centre�Limited�
Directors'�Declaration

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 49, are in accordance with the Australian Charities and
NotͲforͲprofits�Commission�Act�2012 �and:

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited, the directors of the entity
declare�that:�

give a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its performance and cash
flows�for�the�year�ended�on�that�date.

comply�with�Australian�Accounting�Standards�Ͳ�Reduced�Disclosure�Requirements;�and
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Directors of Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited 

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Sunbury Community Health Centre Limited (the company) 
which comprises the: 

• statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021 
• statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended 
• statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• directors’ declaration. 

In my opinion the financial report is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including: 

• giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2021 and of 
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended  

• complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 60 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulations 2013. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the Australian 
Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent of the 
company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities 
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. My staff and I have also 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. 

Directors’ 
responsibilities 
for the financial 
report  

The Directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, and for such 
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit of 
the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report 
based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to 
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I 
identify during my audit.  

I also provide the Directors with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

 

MELBOURNE 
1 November 2021 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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